A. IDENTITY OF PETITIONER 

David Patten asks this court to accept review of the Court of Appeals decision 

terminating review designated in Part B of this petition. 

B. COURT OF APPEALS DECISION 

Court of appeals decision in case no. 73651-5-I issued on June 6, 2016, 2016 in the case 

of David Patten, Appellant v. Leslie Patten, Respondent Order on Motion for Reconsideration 

was denied on June 28th, 2016. A copy of the decision is in the Appendix at pages A-1 through 

A-1 0. A copy of the order denying petitioners motion for reconsideration is in the Appendix at 

page A-ll 

C. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 

1. Did the court of appeals err in finding that the appellant "failed to provide any 

financial support in violation of temporary orders?" 

2. Did the court of appeals err in concluding that his lack of response was due not to 

excusable neglect but of conscious choice? 

3. Did the appellant provide substantial evidence of a primae facie defense to set aside an 

order? 

4. Was the Motion to set aside under CR 60 timely filed and served? 

5. Should this order be set aside under CR 60? 

D. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

1. Procedural Facts 
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a. On June 18, 2013, the petitioner-wife, Leslie Patten filed for dissolution .. (CP 

1-5) 

b. On August 8, 2013, the court set a case schedule with a trial date of 7-7-2014. 

(CP 6) . Judge Robinson Palmer was assigned as judge. (CP 6) 

c. On August 8, 2013, the wife filed for a temporary order requesting temporary 

custody, child support, restraining respondent from moving children, making each party 

responsible for future debts, orders respondent to immediately sign authorization form to 

change the mailing address of the royalty checks are mailed to the family home and 

dividing responsibility for the debts of parties. (CP 20-80) She also filed a financial 

declaration on that date. (CP 81-85). 

d. On August 23, 2013, the wife obtained a temporary restraining order (CP 88-

90). 

e. On October 17,2013, the wife obtained a temporary child support order. (CP 

101-102). On that date she filed a proposed parenting plan. (CP 95-100) 

f. On January 21, 2013, wife filed an amended petition along with a declaration 

indicating that the respondent-husband had been served in jail with the amended petition 

on January 17, 2013. (CP 110-115) 

g. On January 23, the wife filed a certification stating that the husband had been 

served with a motion for default and a note for motion for defaulted on January 18, 

2013).(CP 116) 
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h. On February 8, 2013, the wife filed a motion for default, and a note for motion 

for default, noting it for February 18,2013 (CP 117-120) 

ij. On February 18, 2013, the court entered a Order on Motion for Default, 

Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, Parenting Plan Final Order, Decree of 

Dissolution, Certificate of Compliance, and Restraining Order. (CP 121-145)) 

j. On February 18,2014, the husband filed a notice of appearance, a motion to set 

aside the decree and the order of default. (CP148-152) 

k. On March 4, 2014, an order to show cause was signed as to whether the order 

of default and the accompanying orders should be set aside. A hearing was scheduled for 

April10, 2014. (CP 153) 

1. On March 23, 2015, an affidavit of service was filed showing wife was served 

with motion to vacate. (CP 154-155) 

m. On March 26,2015, wife appeared through counsel. (CP 156). 

n. On April6, 2015, the hearing was re-noted for April30, 2014.(CP 157-158) 

o. On April 7, 2015, a show cause order was signed, calling on the wife to 

respond to the order at a hearing on April30. (CP 159-160). 

p. Wife responded to the show cause order on April24, 2015 and April28, 2015. 

(CP 161-169). 

q. Husband replied on April29, 2015 (CP 170-173). 

r. Court denied Motion to set aside on April301
\ 2015. (CP 174-176) 
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s. On May 7, husband filed a Motion for Reconsideration noting it for May 18, 

2014. (CP 177-186) 

t. On May 13, Court Orders Response. Within 10 days with response due two 

days after service of Response. (CP 187). 

u. On May 22, 2015, wife files a Response. (CP 190-198) 

v. On May 27,2015, husband filed a Reply to the Response (CP 199-233) 

w. On May 28, 2015, Court issues order on Reconsideration. (CP 240) 

x. On June 25, 2015, Patten files a notice of appeal. (CP 243-44) 

2. Substantive Facts. 

a. This is a long term marriage, with the parties having been married 17 years at 

the time the dissolution was filed. (CP 22). 

b. Just before the bottom fell out of the housing market in 2008, DHL, a 

corporation run by the husband, basically lost its business because its shipping carrier 

picked up and left the country. (CP (24). 

c. Even though he was suffering from alcoholism, as evidenced by a DUI he 

received in October 2008, in the summer of 2010, he was able to negotiate a sale of the 

business for $800,000 and royalties of 8% of monthly profits. ( CP 24 ). The wife admits 

that the payments went from $2000 to $8000 per month averaging $4000 per month. She 

does not deny the husbands allegation that the royalties were at $8000 per month at the 

time ofthe default. (CP 150). This was an extraordinary good deal that no other franchise 
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during that period of time had been able to negotiate. ( CP 201) This royalty payment is 

expected to grow to at least $16,000 per month and possible as much as $20,000 to 

$30,000 month (CP 201). According to calculations done by the husband, at the time of 

the motion for reconsideration, payments had grown to almost $3000 per week. (CP 202) 

d. The husband was primarily responsible for the business during the marriage, 

putting in 12-13 hour days. He oversaw the business which started a profits of $1000 per 

week, which eventually grew to over $40,000 per week. During this time, the couple was 

able to have the mother stay at home and take care of the children instead of sending them 

to a day care center. (CP 203). The husband does not deny that the wife was an excellent 

mother but does say she was unwilling to help out by getting a job when the business 

failed. (CP 152). 

e. In her motion for temporary orders, the petitioner never requested the right to 

sign for company checks, only that they be delivered to her. (CP 21). She does not allege 

that she was an officer of the company or in any other way have a right to sign for checks 

nor have exclusive right to the money. (CP 22-80) 

f. After the petitioner appeared at a preliminary hearing concerning temporary 

custody (See Tr. February 18, 2004, p. 5, 1. 20 top. 6 1. 3), he later was charged on an 

unrelated matter. He was served with an amended petition that drastically changed the 

petition on January 1 ih, 2014. (CP 1-5, 110-115). Although he was served with the 

motion for default the next day along with a noting date, at the time he was served, he 
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was not in default because the 1 0 days for responding to an amended summons had not 

elapsed. There was no allegation in the motion for default that the petitioner was in 

default at the time it was drafted. (CP 117-120). The motion and default were not filed 

until February 6, 2014, which was a mere twelve days before the noting date. King 

County local rules require that the motion be filed 14 days before the noting date. King 

County LFLR 6. It is not known how the petitioner was able to get her motion heard, but 

it is highly unlikely it was done through legal means. According to page 5 of the 

transcript of February 18,2014, counsel for the petitioner admitted she participated in 

some kind of illegal ex parte contact when she stated, "We've scheduled a motion this 

morning." (Tr. 2-18-2014, p .. 5, 1. 12-13.). King County rules do not allow for 

scheduling a motion on just 12 days notice, let alone less than one day. 

g. The husband was in jail at the time he was served with the amended petition of 

January 17. (CP 110-115). According to his declaration, he could not make outgoing 

calls without calling collect and therefore could not communicate with any attorneys. (CP 

185). The jailers would not give him transport so there was no way for him to get to the 

hearing. (CP 185). The only way he could think ofto communicate with the court was to 

send his nephew, who the court did not recognize (CP 185). 

h. Following his release, the petitioner declared under oath that he could not 

afford to put up a retainer for an attorney (CP 151) which typically required a $5000 (CP 

217) 
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i. The petitioner filed his motion within one year of the Dissolution order on 

February 18,2014. (CP 148-152). It was served approximately a month later. (CP 154-

155). 

E. ARGUMENT WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE ACCEPTED 

1. The court of appeals decision relied upon sua sponte findings that were not 
supported by the record. 

On page 2 of the decision, the court of appeals made the finding that "David then failed to 

provide any financial support ofthe children in violation of the temporary orders." 

On page 7 of the decision, the court of appeals made a finding that David made a 

statement that he anticipated that the result of the proceedings, even without his participation, 

would be a more favorable distribution of the assets for him (possibly even "one-half') They 

then made a finding that his lack of response was due not excusable neglect but conscious choice. 

This finding ignores the fact that David's statement was based upon his reading of the original 

complaint, not the amended complaint (CP 150). He made no such statement with respect to the 

amended complaint and his statement about the original complaint did not indicate that this 

would happen without his participation as suggest by the court. Also, the record is clear that 

David did send his nephew Juan Elizondo to appear on his behalf to represent at the hearing, 

indicating that his failure to file an answer was not so much because he didn't want to participate, 

as much as it was that he didn't know the court rules and laws regarding representation. 

The court's findings were not requested and are not supported by the record, and therefore 

should be reversed. State v. Camarillo, 854 Wn. App. 821, 829, citing Bohn v. Cody, 119 Wn.2d 
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357, 368 (findings not supported by the record)., RAP 10.3 . In addition, in determining a 

motion to vacate the trial court does not make factual determination; rather the court evaluates 

whether the movant, under CR 60(b ), has established substantial evidence of a primae facie 

defense. Significantly, the court must review the evidence in the light most favorable to the 

moving party. Pfaffv. State Farm Mut. Auto Ins Co., 103 Wn. App. 829 At 834. 

2. The motion was timely filed within one year, and the appellant met the 
requirements for diligence under Washington Law. 

CR 60 only requires that a motion be "made" within one year, not served. The 

respondent tried to argue that the motion but that was not the reasoning given by the court of 

appeals. According to the court of appeals, lack of diligence cannot be excused by not being able 

to afford an attorney, citing to CR 11, but provide no case authority for that proposition. Their 

own cited case law seems to indicate just the opposite: Default judgments are generally 

disfavored in Washington Morin v. Burris, 160 Wn.2d 745, 754, 161 P.3d 956 (2007). A party 

seeking to vacate a default judgment pursuant to CR 60(b)(l) must establish (1)That there is a 

substantial evidence extant to support, at least prima facie, a defense to the claim asserted by the 

opposing party; (2) that the moving party's failure to timely appear in the action, and answer the 

opponent's claim, was occasioned by mistake, inadvertence, surprise or excusable neglect; (3) 

that the moving party acted with due diligence after notice of entry of the default judgment; and 

(4) that no substantial hardship will result to the opposing party. White v. Holm 73 Wn.2d 348, 

352,438 P.2d 581(1968). The first two factors are primary Rosander v. Nightrunners Transp., 

I 
Ltd. 147 Wn. App. 392, 404, 196 P.3d 711 (2008). If it clearly appears that a strong defense on 
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the merits exits, the courts will spend scant time inquiring into the reasons which resulted in the 

entry of the order of default White, 73 Wn.2d at 352; Suburban Janitorial Services v. Clarke 

American. 72 Wn. App. 302,305,863 P.2d 1377 (1993); Gage V Boeing Co. 55. Wn. App. 157, 

163, 776 P.2d 991 (1989); Yeck v. Dept. of Labor & Indus. 27 Wn.2d 97, 176 P.2d 359 (1947). 

Here, the court should have given scant time inquiring into the reason which resulted in 

the entry of the default because he presented a very strong case on the merits. Contrary to the 

conclusion of the trial court, and the court of appeals, Patten presented far more than a couple of 

conclusory statements. He presented a declaration which presented substantial evidence that the 

order was one sided because the wife was awarded all the assets and he was awarded all the 

debts. For example, she was awarded all the real estate ( CP 150, 151 ), a Ford Explorer which 

was obtained after selling a porshe worth $17,000, a 1997 Jeep, 100% of all Royalties from the 

business which amounted to $4000 per month, which had now grown to $8000 per month. She 

was also awarded child support that was based on the assumption that he received the royalties, 

which were in fact awarded to the wife. She was even awarded separate property in the house 

including antiques and tools his mother left him. Thus the wife was awarded over $600,000 in 

assets plus the royalties now worth over $8,000 per month, while the husband was saddled with 

over $400,000 in debts, his clothing, and a 2001 Chevy pickup worth only $500.00 because of 

mechanical problems. (CP151, 152) 
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F. CONCLUSION 

Here, the petitioner laid out a number of factors that indicated he had a strong primae facie 

case. There was the fact that all assets were awarded to Leslie Patten, and all debts were awarded 

to Petitioner David Patten (CP 149-152). This included David's separate property awarded to 

Leslie. Finally there was the illogical conclusion of basing David's child support on royalties 

that were awarded to Leslie. 

RAP 13.4 (b) lists four factors for accepting a discretionary appeal. Factor 1 is met 

because the court of appeals decision is in conflict with the Supreme Courts decision in White, 73 

Wn.2d at 352. Factor 2 is met because the decision is not only in conflcit with Suburban 

Janitorial Services v. Clarke American. 72 Wn. App. 302,305, 863 P.2d 1377 (1993); Gage V 

Boeing Co. 55. Wn. App. 157, 163,776 P.2d 991 (1989); Yeckv. Dept. of Labor & Indus. 27 

Wn.2d 97, 176 P.2d 359 (1947) but also its decision to ignore the primae facie showing of the 

appellant contradicts Pfaffv. State Farm Mut. Auto Ins Co., 103 Wn. App. 829 At 834. The 

issue of awarding all assets in a dissolution action such as this of substantial public interest. 

July 28, 2016 
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IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON 

In the Matter of the Marriage of: 

LESLIE PATIEN, 

Respondent, 

and 

DAVID PATIEN, 

Appellant. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) __________________________ ) 

DIVISION ONE 

No. 73651-5-1 

UNPUBLISHED OPINION 

FILED: June 6, 2016 

DWYER, J.- David Patten1 appeals from a default dissolution decree, 

entered after he failed to timely participate in the underlying proceedings. He 

contends that the superior court improperly denied his motion to vacate the 

default decree. Because the superior court did not abuse its discretion by 

concluding that David failed to establish that his failure to participate was due to 

excusable neglect, we affirm. 

Leslie and David Patten were married for 17 years and had three children 

before Leslie filed a petition for dissolution, a summons, and a motion for 

temporary orders on August 8, 2013. David was served the following day. The 

petition asked for a fair and equitable division of all property and liabilities to be 

1 Because the parties share a surname, we refer to each by his or her given name. 
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determined by the court at a later date, child support and day care expenses, 

approval of the proposed parenting plan, award of tax exemptions for the