A. Relief Requested by Respondent. 

Leslie Patten, respondent in this Court and in the Court of 

Appeals, asks this Court to deny David Patten's petition for review of 

Division One's unpublished June 6, 2016 decision. Mr. Patten fails 

to meet the RAP 13.4(b) criteria for review. Addressing an unusual 

fact pattern that is unlikely to arise again, the Court of Appeals' 

opinion is wholly consistent with authority from both this Court and 

the lower courts, and statutory law governing default judgments, and 

raises no issues of constitutional or substantial public interest. This 

Court should deny review.

B. Restatement of the Case. 

Respondent Leslie Patten adopts the facts as set forth in the 

Court of Appeals decision (Op. 1-4)1 , which led the trial court to deny 

Mr. Patten's motion to vacate the default dissolution decree because 

he "did not demonstrate a legal basis to set aside the order," "did not 

demonstrate excusable neglect," "did not act with due diligence after 

he became aware of entry of the default orders," and "did not provide 

substantial evidence to support a conclusion that the trial court 

would make a different distribution of assets." (CP 175; 4/30 RP 37-

1 Respondent cites to the Court of Appeal's June 6, 2016 decision as 
paginated in the unpublished opinion attached to Mr. Patten's petition for 
review. 
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40) The trial court also determined that "Ms. Patten would suffer a 

hardship if the orders were set aside at this point." (CP 175) 

Division One affirmed the trial court's denial of Mr. Patten's 

motion to vacate, holding that the trial court did not abuse its 

discretion, and its findings were supported by the record. (Op. 8) 

C. Grounds for Denial of Review. 

This Court should deny Mr. Patten's petition for review of 

Division One's decision affirming the trial court's fact-based 

discretionary decisions, all of which were supported by substantial 

evidence. Review is not warranted under any of the bases in RAP 

13-4(b). Division One's decision is not in conflict with any other 

decisions in the Court of Appeals or in this Court. RAP 13-4Cb)(l), 

(2). Nor does Division One's decision raise any constitutional issues 

or involve issues of substantial public interest. RAP 13-4Cb)(3), (4). 

1. Division One's decision is consistent with 
decisions of this Court and the Court of 
Appeals, holding that a trial court's disposition 
on a motion to vacate should not be disturbed 
absent a clear abuse of discretion. 

Division One properly held that the trial court did not abuse 

its discretion in denying petitioner's motion to vacate where the trial 

court applied the correct legal standard compelled by this Court in 
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White v. Holm, 73 Wn.2d 348, 438 P.2d 581 (1968), and the record 

supported the trial court's findings. 2 

Mr. Patten contends that Division One's decision is in conflict 

with White and its progeny because Division One "should have given 

scant time inquiring into the reason which resulted in the entry of 

the default" after "he presented a very strong case on the merits." 

(Petition 9) But Division One's deference to the trial court's 

discretion is consistent with case law from this Court and in the lower 

appellate courts. RAP 13.4(b)(1), (2). See White, 73 Wn.2d at 351 

(motion to vacate or set aside a default judgment is "addressed to the 

sound judicial discretion of the trial court"; the appellate court "will 

not disturb the trial court's disposition of the motion unless it be 

made to plainly appear that sound discretion has been abused"); 

Yeck v. Dep't of Labor & Indus., 27 Wn.2d 92, 95, 176 P.2d 359 (1947) 

("This court has long adhered to the rule that the matter of setting 

aside default judgments is discretionary with the trial judge and that 

2 Mr. Patten asserts that Division One erred when it "relied upon sua sponte 
findings that were not supported by the record" and "were not requested." 
(Petition 7) But Division One was not making "sua sponte findings." It 
properly reviewed the record to determine whether substantial evidence 
supported the trial courts findings. See Marriage of Littlefield, 133 Wn.2d 
39, 47, 940 P.2d 1362 (1997) (trial court abuses its discretion only if its 
decision is "outside the range of acceptable choices, given the facts" or "if 
the factual findings are unsupported by the record"). 
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we will not interfere with the exercise of this discretion unless a 

manifest abuse thereof is made to appear."); Rosander v. 

Nightrunners Transport, Ltd., 147Wn. App. 392,403, 1l20, 196 P.3d 

711 (2008) (trial court abuses its discretion on motion to vacate "only 

when its decision is manifestly unreasonable or based on untenable 

grounds"). 

Division One properly deferred to the trial court's findings, 

which were supported by substantial evidence, that Mr. Patten failed 

to satisfy his burden under White. In White, this Court held that a 

party seeking to vacate a default judgment under CR 6o(b) must 

establish four factors: (1) there is substantial evidence to support a 

prima facie defense; (2) the moving party's failure to timely appear 

was occasioned by mistake, inadvertence, surprise, or excusable 

neglect; (3) the moving party acted with due diligence after notice of 

the entry of default judgment; and (4) no substantial hardship will 

result to the opposing party. 73 Wn.2d at 352. The first two factors 

are primary and, "coupled with the secondary factors[,] vary in 

dispositive significance as the circumstances of the particular case 

dictate." White, 73 Wn.2d at 352. 

If the moving party is "able to demonstrate a strong or 

virtually conclusive defense," then "scant time will be spent inquiring 
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into the reasons which occasioned entry of the default, provided the 

moving party is timely with his application and the failure to properly 

appear in the action in the first instance was not willful." White, 73 

Wn.2d at 352 (emphasis added). However, absent such a "virtually 

conclusive" defense, even where a moving party is able to 

demonstrate a prima facie defense, "the reasons for his failure to 

timely appear in the action before the default will be scrutinized with 

greater care, as will the seasonability of his application and the 

element of potential hardship on the opposing party." White, 73 

Wn.2d at 352-53 (emphasis added). 

Division One's decision affirming the trial court's denial of the 

motion to vacate is wholly consistent with this Court's decision in 

White. The trial court did not misapply the White factors by 

"inquiring into the reason which resulted in the entry of the default" 

(Petition 9) because Mr. Patten did not present any defense 

demonstrating that the trial court would have made a different 

property distribution had he appeared. (Op. 6-7) The record 

supported the trial court's finding that Mr. Patten's "bare assertions" 

of the assets and liabilities awarded in the default decree did not 

satisfy his burden of establishing a defense, but rather merely 

demonstrated his "dissatisfaction" with the distribution. (Op. 6-7) 
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Even if Mr. Patten had sufficiently established a "virtually 

conclusive defense," the trial court properly inquired into the reasons 

for the entry of the default because Mr. Patten did not timely move 

to vacate within one year as required by CR 6o(b)(1),3 and substantial 

evidence supported the trial court's finding that his failure to appear 

in the original proceeding was willful and not due to excusable 

neglect. (Op. 7) See White, 73 Wn.2d at 352. Similarly, even if Mr. 

Patten had "laid out a number of factors that indicated he had a 

strong prima[] facie case" (Petition 10 ), White still requires the trial 

court to "scrutinize[] with greater care" the other three factors when 

the moving party demonstrates a prima facie case on the merits. 73 

Wn.2d at 352-53. 

Mr. Patten cites a number of Court of Appeals decisions that 

he contends conflict with Division One's decision. (Petition 10) But 

rather than support this contention, the cited cases are all in accord 

with the well-established principles set forth in White and Yeck, and 

3 Mr. Patten contends that Division One should have excused his lack of 
due diligence in not timely bringing the motion to vacate because he was 
unable to retain counsel. (Petition 8) This argument is without merit. 
"[T]he law does not distinguish between one who elects to conduct his or 
her own legal affairs and one who seeks assistance of counsel - both are 
subject to the same procedural and substantive laws." Marriage of 
Wherley, 34 Wn. App. 344,349, 661 P.2d 155, rev. denied, 100 Wn.2d 1013 
(1983). "[A] prose litigant is held to the same standard as an attorney." 
Kelsey v. Kelsey, 179 Wn. App. 360,368, ~ 20,317 P.3d 1096, rev. denied, 
180 Wn.2d 1017, cert. denied, 135 S. Ct. 451, 190 L. Ed. 2d 330 (2014). 
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adhered to here by Division One. See Suburban Janitorial Services 

v. Clarke American, 72 Wn. App. 302, 302, 863 P.2d 1377 (1993) 

(noting the "well established" rules under White and Yeck for 

vacating default judgments and affirming trial court's exercise of 

discretion in ruling on motion to vacate), rev. denied, 124 Wn.2d 

1006 (1994); Gage v. Boeing Co., 55 Wn. App. 157, 163, 776 P.2d 991 

(citing Mlite and noting that where moving party presents strong 

defense, courts spend "scant time" inquiring into reasons for entry of 

default provided failure to appear was not willful), rev. denied, 113 

Wn.2d 1028 (1989); Pfaff v. State Farm Mut. Auto Ins. Co., 103 Wn. 

App. 829, 14 P.3d 837 (2000) (affirming trial court's disposition on 

motion to vacate where all of the White factors were properly 

applied), rev. denied, 143 Wn.2d 1021 (2001). Because the trial court 

properly applied the Mlite factors and the record supports its 

findings, Division One's decision affirming the trial court is wholly 

consistent with decisions of this Court and the Court of Appeals 

regarding motions to vacate default judgments. Review is not 

warranted under RAP 13-4(b)(1) or (2). 

7 



2. This Court should deny review because this is 
an unusual fact pattern that is unlikely to 
repeat itself and is not of substantial public 
interest. 

Review is also not warranted under RAP 13.4(b)(3) or (4). Mr. 

Patten does not assert that Division One's decision raises any 

constitutional issues, RAP 13.4(b)(3), but contends that "[t]he issue 

of awarding all assets in a dissolution action such as this [is] of 

substantial public interest." (Petition 10) Notwithstanding Mr. 

Patten's erroneous characterization of the distribution, this is a 

private dispute between former spouses over property and finances. 

Highly unique circumstances led to the entry of this dissolution 

decree, and this unusual fact pattern is unlikely to repeat itself. 

Division One's decision does not raise any issue of substantial public 

interest, and review is not warranted under RAP 13-4(b)(4). 

D. Conclusion. 

This Court should deny review.